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GRAVELLY HILLS
Chaptico
Private 1847

Rescued from a nearly ruinous state, this
three-part frame house again functions as a very
attractive and well-maintained home. The largest
section has a side hall, double parlor plan and two
chimnies on the east where it is joined to the middle
section which also has two chimnies on the east.
This second section has a floor plan consisting of a
long hall across the front and two rooms divided by a
hall in the rear. A 1 1/2-story kitchen is built onto
the chimney wall of the middle section. All three parts

of the house were apparently built at the same time, in

1847 according to a date found in the house during restoration.

A two-story front porch oﬁ?ée stood on the 3 1/2-story
V
section. The west bay on the second floor held a door to
the porch, but now contains a 6/6 light window over two

panels.

This property remained in the hands of the descendants
of Philip Key until 1920 except for the period 1856-1864.

For further information, see archeological listing.




Rl ame

ARCHEOLOGICAL SITE

S¥MA-73
GRAVELLY HILLS
Chaptico
Private 18th or early 19th century

In his willy probated in 1820, Philip Key,
a prominent St. Mary's Countian in the politics of
the Revolutionary and Early National periods, left
his house at Gravelly Hills to his wife. The discovery
of some Flemish bond brick work in the cellar of the
present Gravelly Hills house may suggest that it sits
on the site of the earlier house. The use of some
earlier trim in the 1847 house is also thought to point
to this. 1In any case, an earlier house, probably 18th

century, did stand on this land until at least 1820,

although its location is not known for certain.
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Gravelly Hills is about l!s miles north of Chaptico, Maryland, near Maryland Route 234 on
Davis Road, in St. Mary's County.

Constructed in the 1840's with some parts of possibly earlier date, Gravelly Hills was
restored from near ruin by the present owners, beginning in 1955. All mantels, doors
and trim except for the cornices, are original.

Gravelly Hills is a telescope house of three sections. The largest is 3% stories tall
and three bays wide; the next, 2% stories and two bays; and the last 1% stories and one bayv
Each section is set back from the one before on the front, but on the rear all are flush.

The exterior of the two larger sections is covered with clapboards, painted white. The
kitchen, however, is covered with flush tongue and groove siding, painted white. All

three have gable roofs covered with asphalt shingles. The pair of gable dormers on the
south slopes of both the larger sections are not original while those on the north slope ar
all contain 6/6 sash. The south slope of the kitchen roof extends to the front wall of the
middle section, creating a porch across the kitchen facade.

There are two exterior chimneys on the east end of the largest sections. The north edge
of the southerly one is flush with the front wall of the middle section; the other is
enclosed within the middle section and services both it and the larger section. Another
chimney between the middle section and the kitchen services only the wide kitchen
hearth on the first floor level. The stacks of all the chimneys are detached from the
buildings at the roof 1line.

A two story porch once stood on the front of the largest section. The second-story

window in the west bay was the door to the porch. This window now has a six-over-six light
double hung sash over two panels. The louvered shutters extend the full height of the
panels and the window.

The largest (west) section has the main entrance to the house in the west bay. The
doorway has an eight-panel door with a six-1light transom and three-pane sidelights over
a narrow panel. Louvered shutters hang on either side of the doorway. There are two
six-over-gix light windows to the east of the two door openings. These all have
louvered shutters.

The middle section has an eight-panel door in the west bay and the six-over-six light
window in the east bay and two such windows on the second floor. Door and windows all have
louvered shutters.

The kitchen has a window (replacing a door) in the center of the south facade. The porch
here was supported by four posts; there are presently no posts.

See Continuation Sheet #1
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The east facade of the kitchen has a 6/6 light window on the first floor and directly
above 1t in the gable. The east facade on the middle section has a 6/6 window in the
gable to the south of the chimney. The east facade of the largest section has a 6/6

window just north of the south chimney stack in the gable, and a narrow 2/2 window in
the peak of the gable; none have shutters.

The west facade of the largest section has two 6/6 windows on the three floors and one
2/2 in the peak of the gable. The two pairs below the roofline are set slightly
off-center to the south. The pair in the gable are slightly smaller and they are
centered.

On the rear of the house there is an entrance in the west bay of the largest section
with 6/6 windows in the other two bays on the first floor, and three 6/6 windows
spaced as on the south facade, on the second floor. The middle section has windows in
the bays except the next to the eastern most of the first floor which has an entrance.
The single bay of the old kitchen has a window formerly a door. A gable-roofed,
square screened porch stands at each entrance on this facade.

The floor plan of the largest section is a side hall/double parlor one. The doors

on the two parlors and the two parlor chambers are of pine painted to simulate maple
graining. Those to the parlors have ten panels. The architraves around these doorwavs
have corner blocks. The doors in the rest of the house are painted and have plain
architraves. In the hall of the largest section 1s an open string stair with large
round and turned newel posts, square balusters and decorative brackets on the step
ends. The stalr ascends from the first floor to the third. The parlors are identical in
decoration with cornices and mantels with plain pilasters. The cornices are not
original. The parlors are connected by two large doors in the center of the partition.
The second floor plan is the same as that of the first floor. The bedrooms have
mantels similar to those in the parlors and more simple cornices; the latter also not
original. On the third floor the hall is divided with a small room at the north end.
There 1s a narrow open string stalr without railing leading to the attic. - A doorway
has been cut through the east wall of the north room leading to the half-story of the
middle sections.

The first floor plan of the middle section consists of two rooms on the north

separated by a narrow hall and a long hall along the south side. This hall has a door
at either end; the west one opening into the south parlor and the east one onto the old
kitchen porch. Between the door and window on the south wall of the hall is an open
string stalr leading to the second floor. Beneath this stair is an entrance to the
cellar, not original. The west room is used as a dining room, the narrow hall is a
bath, and the east room i1s a modern kitchen. The dining room has closet on either side
of the fireplace with five-panel doors. A new door in the east wall leads into the
modern kitchen. There is a drain rail in the dining room.

See Continuation Sheet #2.
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On the second floor of this section the floor is almost the same. A bathroom over
the dining room has a fireplace, sharing the chimney with a bedroom in the largest sectio
as on the first floor. There is a bedroom over the modern kitchen, and a stair to the
half-story between the two rooms. The bedroom extends the width of the house.
Its west wall has verticle wood paneling and a board and batten door to a closet under
the stair to the half story. This is the only paneled wall in the house; the rest
are all plastered. A fireplace on the east wall has a mantel similar to others in
the house; it uses the same chimney that services the old kitchen fireplace on the

’ first story.

The smaller section, the old kitchen, called the slave kitchen addition, is entered
through a new doorway from the modern kitchen. The interior has been modernized
with vertical board paneling, and windows replace the doors in the north and south

— walls. A stair to the loft in the northeast corner has been removed, and the
original dirt floor has been paved with bricks. Only the wide brick fireplace in the
west wall has not been touched. It is 4% feet deep and 6% feet wide and retains the
original swinging cranes.
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Gravelly Hills near Chaptico, Maryland was once part of Chaptico Manor which was

originally part of St. Clements Manor.
Thomas Gerard in 1670, and set this land aside for the Indians.
the Chopticon, were still living in the Manor and the rest of the land was rented to

tenant farmers.

Lord Baltimore acquired Chaptico Manor from
By 1692 only one tribe,

Gravelly Hills was constructed in the mid-19th century, but there is some evidence in
the use of different trim and doors and the presence of flemish bond in a cellar wall,
Also there is documentary evidence
of a house at the location of the present Gravelly Hills earlier than the mid-19th

that the house may have been built in two periods.

— century.

One of these is the will of Philip Key who left Gravelly Hills, the house he
was living in , to his wife at his death in 1820.

The house belonged to Key's descendants except for a brief period (1856-1864) until

1920 when it was sold out of the family.

The house then went through a sucession of

owners until 1955 when the present owners purchased and restored it after it had fallen
into almost complete disrepair.

Philip Key, born in 1750 in St. Mary's County, was a member of the same Key family
that had distinguished itself through service on the state, federal and local levels

in Maryland.

Returning from schooling in England in 1770, he became an attorney in

St. Mary's County and soon was representing his district in the Maryland Assembly.

Key served the House of'Delegates in 1773 and 1779-1790. He was a member of the
Committee of Correspondence for St. Mary's County in 1774 and was an active supporter of
the Revolution, contributing one of the largest donations in money and tobacco in Mary-

land.

In 1791, Key was elected to the second U.S. Congress, serving until 1793, 1In

1795 and 1796, Key was a member of the state House of Delegates and served as Speaker

of the House during this period.
Mary's County to retire at Gravelly Hills.

After his term ended in 1796, Key returned to St.
It 18 recorded that he declined an appoint-

ment to the cabinet of President Monroe, and he also declined an appointment to the
Governorship of the State of Maryland.

See Continuation Sheet #3.
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Gravelly Hills is a good example of the side hall/double parlor plan of ten found

in St. Mary's County in the first half of the 19th century. It is important because

it has been specifically dated by the discovery of "1847" written on a window

frame hidden by the lathe and plaster until restoration. The plan of the middle section
built at the same time, is more developed than many of this type, with its two rooms

and two halle connecting them to the rest of the house. The mantels in the house are
early examples of an early Victorian style that became popular after the Federal

period, although the side hall/double parlor plan 1s a Federal one. The pine-paneled
doors in the west stair hall grained to resemble maple are fine examples of art

of graining, lost to modern builders.
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GRAVELLY HILLS Sm rB
Chaptico, St. Mary's County, Maryland
Photographer: Johs Bruton

Negative Located: St.Mary's Co.Comm/MHT
Date PRotograph Taken

Exterior View FE:E 8 5 ig% ]






GRAVELLY HILLS
Chaptico, St. Mary's County, Maryland
Photographer: John Bruton

Negative Located:St, Mary's Co.Comm
Date Photograph Taken: y Lo

Exterior View FEb 8 1978
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GRAVELLY HILLS

Chaptico, St. Mary's County, Maryland
Photographer; John Bruton

Negative Located: St.Mary's Co. Comm./MHT
Date Photograph Taken: :

Exterior View, FeB 8 1978
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GRAVELLY HILLS
Chaptico, St. Mary's County, Maryland
Photographer: Jopp Bruton

Negative Located=St.Mary's Co.Comm. /MHT
Date Photograph Taken:

Exterior View EL'_B 8 1978
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Chaptico, St. Mary's County, Maryland
Photographer: John Bruton

Negative located:St.Mary's Co.Comm/MHT

Date Photograph Taken: [fH & 1978
Exterior View
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GRAVELLY HILLS
Chaptico, St. Mary's County, Maryland
Photographer: jopp Bruton

Negative Located=St.Mary's Co.Comm. /MHT
Date Photograph Taken:

Interior View, Door, Ftl‘j 8

1978
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GRAVELLY HILLS
Chaptico, St. Mary's County, Maryland
Photographer: John Bruton
Negative Located:St.Mary'sCo.Comm./MHT
Date Photograph Taken:
Interior View, Second Floor Bedroom

Fireplace FEB g 1978
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GRAVELLY HILLS

Chaptico, St. Mary's County, Maryland
Photographer: John Bruton

Negative Located:St.Mary's Co. Comm. /MHT

Date Photograph Taken:

Interior View, Fireplace,

FEB 8 1978







GRAVELLY HILLS
Chaptico, St. Mary's County, Maryland
Photographer: John Bryton

Negative Located: g¢. Mary'
Date Photograph Taken: y's Co.Comm/MHT

Interior View, Fireplace, North Bedroom

FEB 8 1978







GRAVELLY HILLS
Chaptico, St. Mary's County, Maryland
Photographer: John Bruton

Negative Located:St_Mary's Co. Comm/MHT
Date Photograph Taken,/ /77(,

Interior View North Parlor

Feo & 1978
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Chaptico, St. Mary's County, Maryland
Photographer: dJohn Bruton

Negative Located: St. Mary's Co.Comm/MHT
Date Photograph Taken;

Interior View FEB 8 1978
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GRAVELLY HILLS

Chaptico, St. Mary's County, Maryland
Photographer: John Bruton

Negative Located: St. Mary's Co.Comm./MHT
Date Photograph Taken:

" Interior View, Stairway FEB 8 ]978
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Chaptico, St. Mary's County, Maryland
Photographer: john Bruton

Negative LocatedSt. Mary's Co.Comm/MHT
Date Photograph Taken:
Interior View

Feb 8 1978
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